,

\*\*\*\*

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

.

**Rea & Associates, Inc.** CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

.

\*\*\*\*

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

Rea & Associates, Inc.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

,

.

ł

#### \*\*\*\*

## FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### PAGE

Independent Auditor's Report	1
Balance Sheets - Unrestricted Funds	2
Statements of Operations - Unrestricted Funds	3
Statements of Changes in Fund Balances	4
Statements of Cash Flows - Unrestricted Funds	5
Notes to the Financial Statements	6 - 14

.



STATE OF OHIO OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

JIM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

35 North Fourth Street, 1<sup>st</sup> Floor Columbus, Ohio 43215

Telephone 614-466-4514 - 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-728-7398

To the Board of Trustees Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital Millersburg, Ohio

We have reviewed the Independent Auditor's Report of the Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital, Holmes County, prepared by Rea & Associates, Inc., for the audit period January 1, 1999 through December 31, 1999. Based upon this review, we have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit required by Section 117.11, Revised Code. The Auditor of State did not audit the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not express an opinion on them.

Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor of State, regulations and grant requirements. The Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital is responsible for compliance with these laws and regulations.

State

April 28, 2000

694 East Washington Street P. O. Box 485 Medina, Ohio 44258-0485 330 - 722 - 8222 FAX: 722 - 7104 www.reacpa.com

## Rea & Associates, Inc.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

March 3, 2000

To The Board of Trustees Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital Millersburg, Ohio

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital an Enterprise Fund of Holmes County, Ohio, as of December 31, 1999 and 1998. These financial statements are the responsibility of Holmes County's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital an Enterprise Fund of Holmes County, Ohio, and are not intended to present fairly the financial position of Holmes County, Ohio, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital an Enterprise Fund of Holmes County, Ohio, as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the results of its operations, changes in fund balances, and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued a report dated March 3, 2000 on our consideration of Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws and regulations, contracts and grants.

Kea & Associates, Inc.

Columbus New Philadelphia Millersburg Coshocton Cambridge Marietta Medina Lima

"We're Ready For Your Future"

## BALANCE SHEETS - UNRESTRICTED FUNDS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

	1999	1998
ASSETS		
CURRENT ASSETS:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 685,228	\$ 1,163,845
Patient, accounts receivable	2,643,665	2,921,539
Current portion - notes and loans receivable	83,266	19,142
Inventories	204,208	181,802
Prepaid expenses and other assets	120,823	79,309
Current portion of assets limited as to use	127,012	116,299
Total current assets	3,864,202	4,481,936
NOTES AND LOANS RECEIVABLE, net of current portion	25,496	0
ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE, net of current portion	5,556,470	4,072,087
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT, net	7,765,686	7,852,636
Total Assets	\$ 17,211,854	\$ 16,406,659
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
CURRENT LIABILITIES:		
Current portion of long term debt and leases	\$ 158,789	\$ 156,814
Accounts payable	413,870	308,615
Accrued salaries, wages and employee benefits	895,255	770,652
Other accrued expenses	276,565	333,405
Third party settlements	241,219	228,000
Total current liabilities	1,985,698	1,797,486
LONG TERM DEBT AND LEASES, less current portion	2,164,949	2,327,072
FUND BALANCE:		
Unrestricted	13,061,207	12,282,101
Total fund balance	13,061,207	12,282,101
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance	\$ 17,211,854	\$ 16,406,659

÷

4

See notes to financial statements.

:

## STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS - UNRESTRICTED FUNDS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

	1999	1998
REVENUE:	······	<u></u>
Net patient service revenue	\$ 16,203,755	\$ 15,312,216
Other operating revenue	383,745	467,386
Total revenue	16,587,500	15,779,602
EXPENSES:		
Salaries and wages	6,053,002	5,607,393
Employee benefits and payroll taxes	1,561,578	1,313,553
Supplies and other	4,731,587	4,547,574
Medical professional fees	1,967,328	1,723,560
Physician recruiting and incentive	72,325	0
Provision for bad debts	672,988	800,512
Depreciation and amortization	1,018,273	886,805
Interest	138,311	129,213
Total expenses	16,215,392	15,008,610
OPERATING INCOME	372,108	770,992
Net non-operating income	242,443	231,997
NE Network Grant - Net	70,572	0
Change in fair value of investments	93,983	11,236
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES	\$ 779,106	\$ 1,014,225

· ·

## STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

	1999	1998
UNRESTRICTED FUNDS		
BALANCE - Beginning of year	\$ 12,282,101	\$ 11,267,876
Revenues and gains in excess of expenses	779,106	1,014,225
BALANCE - End of year	\$ 13,061,207	\$ 12,282,101

• •

See notes to financial statements.

#### STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - UNRESTRICTED FUNDS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

	1999	1998
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:		
Cash received from patients and third-party payers	\$ 15,821,860	\$ 14,467,017
Cash paid to suppliers for services and goods	(6,662,142)	(6,447,773)
Cash payments to employees for services	(7,614,580)	(6,920,946)
Other operating revenue received	383,745	467,386
Net cash provided by operating activities	1,928,883	1,565,684
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES	·.	
		(700 245)
Acquisitions and construction of capital assets - net	(931,323)	(709,245)
Principal payments on capital leases	(117,148)	(156,826)
Principal payments on capital related debts	(43,000)	(40,000)
Interest paid on capital related debt and capital leases	(138,311)	(129,213)
Placed in trust for capital related debt	(24,954)	(14,420)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities	(1,254,736)	(1,049,704)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:		
Net proceeds from grants	72,127	0
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities	72,127	0
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:		•
Notes and loans	(89,620)	(10,278)
Interest on investments	242,442	236,281
Purchases of investments	(767,573)	(992,957)
Net cash used in investing activities	(614,751)	(766,954)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	131,523	(250,974)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of year	2,130,213	2,381,187
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of year	\$ 2,261,736	\$ 2,130,213
Cash and cash equivalents include the following:		
Cash and equivalents	\$ 685,228	\$ 1,163,845
Assets limited as to use cash and cash equivalents:	\$ 065,226	\$ 1,105,045
Board designated for future capital improvements	1 422 220	923,098
Funds available for future construction and equipment	1,533,238 43,270	43,270
Total cash and cash equivalents	\$ 2,261,736	\$ 2,130,213
	3 2,201,730	
A reconciliation of the general fund income from operations to net cash flows		
provided by operating activities is as follows:		
Income from operations	\$ 372,108	\$ 770,992
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations to net cash provided by		
operating activities:		
Depreciation and amortization	1,018,273	886,805
Bad debt expense	672,988	800,512
Interest expense	138,311	129,213
Changes in assets and liabilities:		
(Increase) decrease in patient accounts receivable	(395,114)	(778,788)
(Increase) decrease in interest receivables	0	1,881
(Increase) decrease in inventories	(22,406)	787
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items	(41,514)	37,178
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable	105,255	(94,256)
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses	67,763	(120,348)
Increase (decrease) in third-party settlements	13,219	(68,292)
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$ 1,928,883	\$ 1,565,684

See notes to financial statements.

## NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

#### 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

*Organization* - Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital (the Hospital) is a general acute care hospital owned by Holmes County, Ohio. The ultimate responsibility and ownership of the Hospital is vested on the Holmes County Board of Commissioners who, together with the Probate and Common Pleas Court Judges, appoint a Board of Trustees for the administrative control of the Hospital. The Hospital's activity is reflected as an enterprise fund in the Holmes County Financial Statements. The Hospital has 46 beds.

*Basis of Presentation* - The financial statements have been presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as recommended in the Audit Guide (Health Care Organizations) published by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In accordance with hospital industry accounting practice, the financial statements include an unrestricted fund.

The Hospital's net assets are considered to be unrestricted.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Accounting Standards - Pursuant to Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the Authority has elected to apply the provisions of all relevant pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), including those issued after November 30, 1989.

*Proprietary fund accounting* - The Hospital utilizes the proprietary fund method of accounting whereby revenue and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis. Substantially all revenues and expenses are subject to accrual.

*Cash equivalents* - Cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments purchased from original maturities of three months or less, excluding arrangements under trust agreements.

*Investments* are carried at fair value. Gains and losses on investments, both realized and unrealized, are included in income for unrestricted funds.

Interest and dividends on investments are included in nonoperating income when earned.

Patient Accounts Receivable and Revenue - Patient accounts receivable and revenue are recorded when patient services are performed. Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. In 1999 and 1998, approximately 33% and 34% of the Hospital's total patient revenue was derived from Medicare payments while 6% and 6% was derived from Medicaid payments, respectively. Additionally, approximately 23% and 21% of the Hospital's total patient revenue was derived from individual self-payments in 1999 and 1998. The remaining revenue was derived primarily from commercial insurance payments.

#### 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

*Inventories*- Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value determined by the first-in, first-out method.

Assets Limited as to Use - Assets limited as to use consists of invested funds designated by the Board of Trustees for future capital improvements, funds invested in accordance with agreements with a third-party, and funds held by trustees under indenture agreements (see Note 6).

*Property, Plant, and Equipment -* Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost, or, if donated, at fair value on the date of receipt. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable assets and is computed using the straight-line method. Equipment under capital lease is amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter period of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the equipment. Such amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in the financial statements.

*Charity Care* - The Hospital maintains a policy whereby care is provided to patients who meet certain criteria without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Hospital does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue.

#### 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The classification of cash and cash equivalents, assets whose use is limited and investments on the financial statements differs from criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 3 "Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments and Reverse Repurchase Agreements". A reconciliation between the general fund classifications of cash and cash equivalents, assets whose use is limited and investments on the financial statements and the classification of deposits and investments per GASB Statement No. 3 is as follows:

		Cash and Cash Equivalents	A	ssets Whose Use Is Limited
Financial statements	\$	685,228	\$	5,683,482
Investments		0		(468,871)
Interest Receivable		0		(1,815)
Funds held by Trustee		0		(255,987)
Cash on hand		(600)	_	0
GASB Statement No. 3 deposits	<u>\$</u>	684,628	<u>\$</u>	4,956,810

The Hospital funds held by Holmes County and included in assets whose use is limited (\$255,987 at December 31, 1999) are deposited in the name of Holmes County.

The Hospital may deposit funds not needed for immediate expenses in interest-bearing or non-interestbearing accounts or in United States government obligations.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

#### 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

*Deposits* - At December 31, 1999, the carrying amount of the Hospital's bank deposits for all funds are \$5,641,438 as compared to bank balances of \$5,859,914. The differences in carrying amounts and bank balances are caused by outstanding checks, deposits in-transit, and other reconciling items. Of the bank balances \$405,548 is covered by Federal insurance programs and \$5,452,296 is collateralized with securities held by the financial institution or by its trust department or agent but not in the Hospital's name.

*Investments* - The Hospital's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity. Risk Category 1 includes those investments that meet any one of the following criteria: a) Insured; b) Registered; or c) Held by the Hospital or its agent in the Hospital's name. Risk Categories 2 and 3 include investments which are neither insured or registered. Category 2 includes investments which are held by the counterparty's trust department (or agent) in the Hospital's name. Category 3 includes investments held by a) the counterparty, or b) the counterparty's trust department (or agent) but not in the Hospital's name.

	1999		
	Category 1 2 3	Reported Amount	Fair Value
Common stock	<u>\$ 462,031</u> <del>\$ 0</del> <del>\$ 0</del>	\$ 462,031	\$ 462,031
Mutual fund	00	6.840	6.840
Total investments	<u>\$ 462,031</u> <u>\$ 0</u> <u>\$ 0</u>	<u>\$ 468.871</u>	<u>\$ 468.871</u>

Common stock with a cost of \$47,837 and market value of \$462,031 is not traded on a quoted market; therefore, the year-end market value is determined as the average of the high and low sales price for the last quarter of 1999.

## 3. PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The details of patient accounts receivable are set forth below:

	December 31.			
	1999	1998		
Total patient accounts receivable	\$ 4,137,065	\$ 4,679,012		
Less allowances for:				
Contractual adjustments	793,400	1,057,473		
Uncollectible adjustments	700.000	700,000		
Net patient receivable	<u>\$ 2,643,665</u>	<u>\$ 2,921,539</u>		

#### 4. NOTES AND LOANS RECEIVABLE

Notes and loans receivable represent loans to physicians under various cash flow support and loan arrangements, amount due from self-insurance fund, and loan from Northeast Ohio Health Outreach Network Grant. The physician loans are to be repaid in varying monthly installments including interest at 4%. A summary of the amounts outstanding is as follows:

	December 31,				
	1999	1998			
Gross notes and loans receivable	\$ 108,762	\$ 83,622			
Less: Reserve for Uncollectibles	Q	64.480			
Total notes receivable	108,762	19,142			
Less: Current Portion	83,266	19,142			
Long term portion	<u>\$ 25,496</u>	<u>\$</u>			

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

#### 5. THIRD-PARTY SETTLEMENTS

The Hospital has agreements with Medicare and Medicaid that provide for reimbursements to the Hospital at amounts different from its established rates. Contractual adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs represent the difference between the Hospital's established rates for services and amount reimbursed by third-party payers. The Hospital has reached final settlement with Medicare through 1996 and Medicaid through 1994.

#### 6. ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Assets limited as to use that are required for obligations classified as current liabilities are reported in current assets. The composition of assets limited as to use is set forth in the following table.

	December 31,		
	1999	1998	
Internally designated for future capital improvements:			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 1,533,238	\$ 923,098	
Certificates of Deposit	3,380,301	2,613,670	
Investments in common stock and mutual funds	468,871	374,888	
Interest receivable	<u> </u>	2,428	
	<u>\$ 5,384,225</u>	<u>\$ 3,914,084</u>	
Funds available for future construction - cash and cash equivalents	43,270	43,270	
Held by trustee in connection with debt service	255,987	231.032	
Total assets limited as to use	<u>\$ 5,683,482</u>	<u>\$ 4,188,386</u>	
Assets limited as to use - current portion	\$ 127,012	\$ 116,299	
Assets limited as to use - long term portion	5,556,470	4,072,087	
Total assets limited as to use	<u>\$ 5,683,482</u>	<u>\$ 4,188,386</u>	

Funds available for future construction represent the unexpended proceeds from the County of Holmes Hospital Improvement Notes which were refinanced in 1991.

#### 7. INVESTMENTS

The Hospital's investments are held by the Hospital or its agent in the Hospital's name.

The cost and approximate fair value of investments are as follows:

## Assets limited as to use:

## Unrestricted:

			]	fair Value	F	air Value		Change in
	<del></del>	<u>Cost</u>	<u>Jan</u>	uary <u>1, 1999</u>	Dece	mber 31, 1999		Fair Value
Common Stock Mutual Fund Total	\$ <u>\$</u>	47,837 <u>4,976</u> <u>52,813</u>	\$ 	368,318 <u>6,570</u> <u>374,888</u>	\$ <u>\$</u>	462,031 <u>6,840</u> <u>468,871</u>	\$ \$	93,713 270 93,983
	·	Cost		<sup>7</sup> air Value uary 1, 1998	-	Fair Value mber 31, 1998		Change in Fair Value
Common Stock	\$	47,837	\$	357,374	\$	368,318	\$	10,944 292
Mutual Fund		4,976		6,278		6,570	_	<u> 476</u>

ŧ

## 8. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment consists of the following:

	Decem	Depreciable	
	1999	1998	Lives-Years
Land and land improvements	\$ 772,102	\$ 750,346	10 - 20
Building and fixed equipment	8,085,332	7,841,394	5 - 20
Movable equipment	7,557,666	6,901,492	5 - 20
Construction in progress	8,700	0	
Sub-specialty medical clinic	214,198	214,198	5-20
MLBG medical building	0	17,501	5 - 20
Modular medical office building	<u>559,523</u>	558,985	5 - 20
Total cost	17,197,521	16,283,916	
Less accumulated depreciation	9,431,835	8,431,280	
Property, plant, and equipment - net	<u>\$                                    </u>	<u>\$                                    </u>	

Depreciation and amortization totaled \$1,019,828 and \$891,212 in 1999 and 1998, respectively, including depreciation expense charged to net non-operating income of \$1,555 in 1999 and \$4,407 in 1998.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

#### 9. LONG-TERM DEBT AND LEASES

	December 31,				
		1999		1998	
County of Holmes Hospital Revenue Bonds, Series A, B, and C, payable to the U.S. Farmers Home Administration (FmHA), dated April 10, 1991, due in 30 annual installments of principal plus interest at 5.875%, collateralized by the					
Hospital's revenue	\$	1,920,000	\$	1,963,000	
Obligations under capital lease		403,738		<u>520,886</u>	
Total		2,323,738		2,483,886	
Less: current portion		158,789		<u>156,814</u>	
Long term portion	<u>\$</u>	<u>2,164,949</u>	<u>\$</u>	2,327,072	

The Hospital Revenue Bonds require the Hospital to make monthly payments into debt service and reserve funds. Further, these bonds require the Hospital to maintain adequate insurance coverage and obtain FmHA permission prior to incurring any new debt.

The Hospital has entered into various non-cancelable lease agreements for equipment. These capital leases are due in monthly installments including interest at rates ranging from 5.1% to 9.0%. They expire at various times through 2003 and are collateralized by the equipment leased.

	December 31,			
		1999		
Cost of equipment under capital lease	\$	580,593	\$	1,010,959
Accumulated amortization		174,182		360,235
Net carrying amount	<u>\$</u>	406,411	<u>\$</u>	650.724

The Hospital has entered into various operating lease agreements for equipment which expire at various times through 2002. Equipment operating lease expense totaled \$142,764 in 1999 and \$126,876 in 1998.

Effective January 1, 1998, the Hospital signed a lease agreement to lease software from a company under a three-year non-cancelable lease. Software expense totaled \$108,000 in 1999 and \$108,000 in 1998.

Effective March 1, 1999, the Hospital signed a six year lease agreement for office space from Aultman Health Foundation. Office lease expense totaled \$173,469 in 1999.

Minimum payments on these obligations to maturity as of December 31, 1999 are as follows:

		ng-Term Debt		Capital Leases	Operating Leases		
2000	\$	45,000	\$	132,324	\$ 316,163	\$	493,487
2001		48,000		132,324	208,163		388,487
2002		50,000		132,324	208,163		390,487
2003		53,000		44,108	208,163		305,271
Thereafter	]	1,724,000		0	 294,898	_2	<u>,108,898</u>
Subtotal	1	,920,000		441,080	1,235,550	3.	,596,630
Less amount representing interest		0		37,342	 0		<u>37,342</u>
Total	<u>\$</u>	<u>,920,000</u>	<u>\$</u>	403,738	\$ 1,235,550	<u>\$3</u>	<u>,559,288</u>

## NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

## 9. LONG-TERM DEBT AND LEASES (continued)

The Hospital's long-term debt and capital leases are stated at the historical amount which approximates the fair value at December 31, 1999. The current rates and terms offered to the Hospital are comparable to the weighted averaged interest rates and terms of the current outstanding long-term debt and capital leases.

### **10. CHARITY CARE**

The Hospital provides uncompensated care to indigent patients. The Hospital maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides. These records include the amount of charges foregone for services and supplies furnished under it charity care policy. Charges foregone for services rendered under the Hospital's charity care policy amount to approximately \$389,000 and \$522,000 in 1999 and 1998, respectively.

#### **11. NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE**

The Hospital provides services to certain patients covered by various third-party payer arrangements that provide fixed payments to the Hospital at amounts different than its established rates. Gross patient service revenue and the allowances to reconcile to net patient service revenue for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 are as follows:

	Year Ended December 31.			
	1999	1998		
Gross patient service revenue	\$ 22,938,902	\$ 21,274,556		
Revenue deductions:				
Provision for contractual allowances	6,270,346	5,620,017		
Provision for prompt payment discounts	464,801	342,323		
Total revenue deductions	6,735,147	5,962,340		
Net patient service revenue	<u>\$ 16,203,755</u>	<u>\$ 15,312,216</u>		

#### **12. PENSION PLANS**

#### Public Employees Retirement System

The Hospital contributes to the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system administered by the Public Employees Retirement Board. PERS provides basis retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to Plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for PERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Public Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43251-4642.

Plan members are required to contribute 8.5% of their annual covered salary to fund pension obligations and the Hospital is required to contribute 13.55%. Contributions are authorized by state statute. The contribution rates are determined actuarially. The Hospital's contributions to PERS for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were approximately \$813,000, \$768,000, and \$698,000.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

#### **13. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS**

#### Public Employees Retirement System

In addition to providing pension benefits through Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio ("System"), the System provides postretirement health care coverage to age and service retirees with ten or more years of qualifying Ohio Service Credit. Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary service recipients is also available. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer contributions to the System. As described in Note 4 - Retirement Commitments, the employer contribution rate to the System was 13.55% of covered payroll. Of covered payroll, 4.2% was the portion that was used to fund health care in 1998, the latest information available.

The Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of OPEB adjusted for the effects of payroll increases and health care premium increases. The measure, which is an actuarial present value of credited projected benefits, is intended to help users assess the System's funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The System does not make separate measurements of assets and OPEB for individual employers.

Expenditures for OPEB during 1998 were \$440,596,663. As of December 31, 1998, the unaudited estimated net assets available for future OPEB payments were \$9,447,325,317. The number of statewide benefit recipients eligible for OPEB at December 31, 1998 was 115,579.

#### **14. SELF-INSURED HEALTH BENEFITS**

The Hospital is self-insured, subject to certain stop-loss coverage, for its employees' health benefits. The Hospital accrues the estimated costs of reported and incurred-but-not-reported claims based on its actual claims history. At December 31, 1999 and 1998, the estimated amount of these liabilities, included in the Hospital's other accrued expenses, was \$90,000. This liability is the Hospital's best estimate based on available data. Changes in the reported balances of claims liabilities for 1999 and 1998 resulted from the following:

	Beginning of	Changes in	Claim	Balances at
	Year Liability	<u>Estimates</u>	Payments	Year-End
1999	\$ 90,000-	\$ 752,868	\$ 752,868	\$ 90,000
1998	\$ 54,000	\$ 554,931	\$ 518,931	\$ 90,000

#### **15. ADVERTISING**

The Hospital expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expense was \$53,958 and \$58,520 for 1999 and 1998, respectively. Advertising expenses are included in operating expenses in these financial statements

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

#### **16. MEDICAL MALPRACTICE CLAIMS**

The Hospital has purchased occurrence-based insurance to protect itself against losses from medical malpractice claims. The policy covers claims resulting from incidents that occur during the policy term, regardless of when the claims are reported to the insurance carrier. The Hospital is not aware of any medical malpractice claims, either asserted or unasserted, that would exceed the policy limits of \$1,000,000 per individual claims and \$3,000,000 in the annual aggregate.

#### **17. RELATED ORGANIZATIONS**

The Joel Pomerene Foundation, which is controlled by Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital, was established to solicit contributions from the general public and to support the Hospital. Funds are distributed to the Hospital as determined by the Foundation's Board of Directors. The Foundation's unrestricted net assets equaled \$72,260 in 1999 and \$74,975 in 1998.

The Wayne Holmes Physician Hospital Organization (PHO), who consists of three hospitals, including Joel Pomerene Foundation, was established to negotiate contracts with managed care companies for the three hospitals along with physicians whom belong to the PHO. The Joel Pomerene Foundation contributed \$11,500 to the PHO during the year ended December 31, 1999.

The Northeast Ohio Health Outreach Network, which is controlled by Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital, was established to receive federal grant monies from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Funds are distributed to the Hospital directly from HUD as determined by the Network. The Network received \$155,000 and expended \$84,427, netting to unrestricted net assets of \$70,572 for the year ended December 31, 1999.

#### **18. COMMITMENTS**

The Hospital is involved in various pending claims and lawsuits. In the opinion of the Hospital's management, after consultation with legal counsel, the potential for loss on the claims and lawsuits will not materially effect the Hospital's financial position.

694 East Washington Street P. O. Box 485 Medina, Ohio 44258-0485 330 - 722 - 8222 FAX: 722 - 7104 www.reacpa.com

## Rea & Associates, Inc.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

March 3, 2000

To The Board of Trustees Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital Millersburg, Ohio

#### REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited the financial statements of Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital Enterprise Fund of Holmes County, Ohio, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated March 3, 2000. We have conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

#### Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to management of Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital in a separate letter dated March 3, 2000.

#### **Internal Control Over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. Reportable conditions noted during our audit are described below.

> Columbus New Philadelphia Millersburg Coshocton Cambridge Marietta Medina Lima

#### PAYROLL

As noted in the prior year, there is a lack of segregation of duties relating to the preparation and distribution of payroll checks. One employee is responsible for processing the payroll; posting changes to the master payroll information; and also signs the payroll checks. We recommend segregating duties relating to the payroll process.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe the reportable condition described above is not a material weakness. We also noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to management of Joel Pomerene Memorial Hospital in a separate letter dated March 3, 2000.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management, others within the organization and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Lea & Associates, Inc.



STATE OF OHIO OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

JIM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

88 East Broad Street P.O. Box 1140 Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone614-466-4514 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

## JOEL POMERENE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

HOLMES COUNTY

## **CLERK'S CERTIFICATION**

This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

By: Susan Babbitt

Date: MAY 9, 2000